
 
 

Please ask for: 

Linda Coote 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
 

6 September 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Community & Environment Board 
DATE: 14 September 2022 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor,  ( Councillor Hutchison) (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board, (Councillor Chegwyn) (ex-officio)  

 
Councillor Westerby (Chairman) 

Councillor Miss Kelly (Vice-Chair) 
 

Councillor Mrs Huggins 
Councillor Mrs Cully 
Councillor Johnston 
 

Councillor Maynard 
Councillor Mrs Morgan 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Community & Environment Board 
14 September 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of interest   

 All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 29 June 2022 
(Pages 5 - 8) 

 

4.   Deputations- Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by Monday 12th September 2022. The total time for 
deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not exceed 10 
minutes) 
 

 

5.   Public Questions- Standing order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
12 September 2022) 
 

 

6.   Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Alverstoke (Pages 
9 - 12) 

 

 This report is to provide Members with a status update for the 
Alverstoke coastal defence scheme. 
 

 

7.   Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Forton (Pages 13 - 
16) 

 

 This report is to provide Members with a status update for the Forton 
coastal defence scheme. 
 

 

8.   Climate Change Action Plan progress Update (Pages 17 - 20)  



Community & Environment Board 
14 September 2022 

 
 

 This report sets out the progress that has been achieved against the 
Climate Change Action Plan that was approved at the Climate 
Change Board meeting of 10th March 2022. 
 

 

9.   Waste & Recycling Policy (Pages 21 - 40)  

 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for an updated Waste 
and Recycling Collection Policy. 
 

 

10.   Litter  Bin Policy (Pages 41 - 56)  

 The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the attached Litter 
Bin Policy. 
 

 

11.   Any other items   



Community & Environment Board 
29 June 2022 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 29 JUNE 2022 

 
  
 
Councillors Westerby, Beavis, Mrs Cully, Johnston, Miss Kelly, Maynard, Mrs Morgan and 
Chegwyn 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were none.  
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none.  
 
3. DEPUTATIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none.  
 
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS -STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
A question was received from Mr Dowell as follows:  
 
Agenda item 6 para 2.5, and Appendix A paras 53 and 61, identify 227 food hygiene 
inspections across Risk categories A-D are required over a 10 months period.  Para 60 also 
states 17 new premises are awaiting inspection so will not have a Risk Rating Score (para 
47).  This would suggest at least 244 (i.e. 227 + 17) food hygiene inspections are needed in 
the next 10 months.  If any of these inspections result in a new A Risk assessment an 
additional inspection within 6 months would be required further increasing the number of 
inspections required. 
 
Pre-pandemic food hygiene inspection performance (Appendix A para 56) shows an 
average of 22.5 inspections per month (271 in FY18/19 and 270 in FY19/20) yet the report 
identifies a capacity for around 30 per month.  A total of 225 inspections for a 10-month 
period seems probable, all other influencing factors being equal, significantly short of the 
minimum 244 required. 
Appendix A para 17 identifies that at times consultants may be required to conduct 
inspections.   
 
What has changed in the Environmental Health team that 33% (30 vice 22.5) more 
inspections per month are predicted over the next 10 months compared with pre-pandemic 
performance and, if nothing that explains the increased performance, what budget provision 
has been made to employ external resources to deliver any shortfall against the inspection 
requirement? 
 
Was answered as follows:  
 
The Food Premises Inspection programme is one of the key measures employed by the 
Food Standards Agency to measure the effectiveness of Local Authority Food Law 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Community & Environment Board 
29 June 2022 

 

2 

Enforcement. Every year for the last 10 or so Gosport has achieved around 100% of its 
programme, this whilst many other Authorities have really struggled. The ultimate penalty is 
that the FSA could take over the inspection programme and invoice the Authority for the 
cost. 
 
At the time of writing we have around 244 inspections outstanding. We know this will be a 
challenging target to meet and you rightly highlight there are a number of unknown factors 
that could impact the inspections work. We are prioritising the inspection programme as 
that’s what we have been directed to do and some of the other lower priority work has been 
put on the backburner to free up resource for inspections. The team are incredibly proud of 
their performance in recent years and are going the extra mile now to catch up. We have 
some financial resource set aside should we need outside help, but at the moment we are 
not planning to call upon this, as it’s a very difficult market. 
Should we fall short of the target it won’t be by very many overall and we are unlikely to 
attract attention from the Food Standards Agency as a result and would expect to catch 
those up early in the next financial year. 
 
5. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Kelly be elected as Vice-Chairman for the Municipal Year 
2022-23. 
 
6. FOOD SAFETY SERVICE RECOVERY PLAN  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Environmental Health advising that the 
Food Standards Agency has produced COVID-19 Local Authority Recovery guidance and 
advice. This requires local authorities to ensure that they have documented and approved 
recovery service plans in place that set out how they intend to deliver and resource their 
planned interventions and other activities during the recovery period, up to 2023/24. The 
purpose of this report was to set out the Recovery plan for Gosport’s Food Hygiene 
Inspection programme. 
 
The Board was advised that the FSA had introduced the need for a recovery plan following 
the Covid 19 pandemic. The inspections had stopped during the lock downs and even on 
reopening premises such as care homes and schools had been unable to have inspectors 
inside.  
 
The Board was advised that the team was expected to be on track with its milestones and 
that there was some funding set aside, should it be needed to boost inspection rates. The 
funding was as a result of grants received for additional work undertaken during the 
pandemic.  
 
It was felt that the team were in a good place to be able to complete the required 
inspections.  
 
Members thanked the teams involved in the inspections and welcomed that they would be 
on target and were catching up fast with overdue inspections.  
 
A Members asked how the ratings of premises were advertised. The Board was advised 
that there were advertised centrally on the FSA’s website and that a link was on the 

Page 6



Community & Environment Board 
29 June 2022 

 

3 

Gosport Borough Council website to the ratings. Premises were not required by law to 
advertise their rating.  
 
It was also advised that food delivery services such as Just Eat were also utlising FSA 
ratings on their website and apps.  
 
The Board was advised that some vendors were excluded or exempt from having their 
details published, this included military bases and childminders in private dwellings.  
 
Other premises were exempt from being inspected as they did not have food service as 
their primary business, this included shops that sold seasonal goods.  
 
Members reiterated their thanks to the team for their hard work.  
 
The Board noted that there was a large increase in food takeaway and delivery services as 
a result of the pandemic and questioned the measures in place to ensure that these newer 
premises were working at an appropriate standard.  
 
The Board was advised that any complaints made against such companies would be 
considered and investigated, however the FSA ratings covered the food as prepared. The 
inspections considered whether the food had been cooked to an appropriate temperature 
and how it had been prepared. It could not control the temperature at which the food arrived 
at but that officers would discuss all elements of the food safety with the owners.  
 
The Board also questioned the process in schools with regard to children’s lunchboxes. The 
Head of Environmental Health advised that they would provide an update to Members on 
the specifics of schools.  
 
The Board was advised that the external part of a premises could not be considers as part 
of the inspection but the inspection could take into account things that could present and 
attraction to vermin.  
 
A Members sought clarification as to what the Wessex Shopping Partnership was and it 
was clarified that it was a random sampling programme.  
 
The Board also questioned the testing that took place on imported food from third countries, 
which were those outside the EU. It was advised that English Law was evolving, but was 
behind with changes as a result of Brexit.  
 
Members sought clarification as to how long a premises held their ratings if they weren’t 
particularly high. The Board was advised that when a premises was inspected and received 
a low rating then it could appeal within 21 days, if an appeal was lodged there would be a 
reinspection and the rating could be amended or remain. If an appeal wasn’t lodged then a 
premises could reapply for inspection after 3 months, with a reinspection required after 6. 
 
The initial rating would remain in place until the follow up inspection, however, it would be 
anticipated that any serious issues would be rectified within days.  
 
The cycles for premises inspections varied depending on the level of rating.  
 

Page 7



Community & Environment Board 
29 June 2022 

 

4 

Members sought further clarification on the exemptions of the Range and the ratings for 
such premises as the trash café and other food banks.  
 
A Member questioned the process for mobile catering vans and it was advised that they 
were licensed and inspected by the authority which the van resided in overnight.  
 
Any unit attending such events as festivals would be subject to inspection as part of the 
SAG process, whilst this would not be a full inspection, it would be sufficient enough to 
ensure it was suitable for use at the event.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Board approves the Food Safety Service Recovery Plan as detailed 
at Appendix A 
 
7. CLIMATE IMPACT OF HAMPSHIRE PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Policy and Community Safety  and it 
summarises the most recent available information on the level of Hampshire Pension Fund 
investments in fossil fuels and the overall carbon footprint of Hampshire Pension Fund 
investments, as requested by Climate Change Board members on 10th March 2022.  It also 
identifies a possible mechanism by which the Council can influence future investments, 
should Members wish to do so. 
 
Members welcomed that steps were being taken to ensure that investments were suitable.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Board: 

1. Reviews and notes the information in section 2. 
2. Delegates authority to the Head of Finance and the Climate Change Officer to work with the 

Chairperson of the Community and Environment Board, to agree and submit  a response to 
the current consultation on the Hampshire Pension Fund Responsible Investment Policy 
response on behalf of the Council. 

 
 
8. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
Members were advised that there was currently travelers on site in the Borough and that 
Officers were engaging with Police and pursuing legal action. The use of skips to dispose of 
waste was being examined and other sites were being checked to protect access. This was 
being dealt with as quickly and legally as possible.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.40 pm 

 
 

Page 8



Board/Committee: Community & Environment Board 

Date of meeting: 14TH September 2022 

Title: Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Alverstoke 

Author: Head of Streetscene 

Status: For Noting 

 

Purpose 

This report is to provide Members with a status update for the Alverstoke coastal 
defence scheme. 

Recommendation 

That the Board notes that: 

- A number of risks have been realised on the scheme, including high voltage 

underground cables and the effects of inflation, which have put the project 

budget under significant pressure.  

- To mitigate financial risk, construction works have been paused and the site 

is being reinstated to pre-works condition and will be opened to the public.  

- The future delivery of the scheme is being determined to ensure sufficient 
budget is available.   

- Public communications have been completed, via a letter drop, site notices 

and website updates, explaining that due to realised risks, construction work 

on the defence has stopped. 

 

1.0 Background  
 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 

The proposed scheme at Alverstoke will reduce flood risk to 130 properties 
in Alverstoke over the next 50 years. The preferred contractor was 
approved by the Community Board 10th February 2021 Construction of the 
scheme started in January 2022, with an estimated six-months duration.  
 
During construction a number of risks were realised, and a decision was 
made in April 2022 to pause construction works on site to ensure the 
mandated budget was not exceeded. In September 2022, reinstatement 
works to return the site to pre-works condition will be completed. The site   
will then be opened to the public. These actions avoid putting the council at 
excessive risk. 
 
Upon resolving the outstanding risks and funding needs, it is intended that 
the works will resume as quickly as possible, but the outcome cannot be 
known at this stage. The optimum way forward will need to be developed in 
consultation with the Environment Agency to establish a suitable funding 
route.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
2.0 Report 

 
2.1 Scheme Design: 

 
The proposed scheme at Alverstoke will provide flood defence to a 1 in 
100 year event (1% Annual Exceedance Probability) up to 2060.  
 
The defence comprises a circa 1m high reinforced concrete wall at the 
western end of the lake, with tapering tie-ins at the northern and southern 
ends. The northern end of the defence requires construction on private 
land. The wall has a textured finish to the lake face to complement the 
existing wall at this location. A floodgate completes the defence across 
Little Anglesey Road. 
 

2.2  Progress Update: 
 
Construction works started in mid-January 2022.  
 
During construction a number of risks were realised which have impacted 
the project significantly:  
 

 The location of two high voltages cables which significantly 
impact the safety of the construction, the works programme 
and costs. 

 The civil engineering sector is facing unprecedented 
challenges from cost inflation and the supply of construction 
materials.  

 An immediate request was made to the Environment Agency 
for additional funds. An official decision has not yet been 
received and is now outside of the timeframe needed to 
maintain progress on site. 

 

The following actions were taken to mitigate the risk that the mandated 
budget would be exceeded:  
 

 Construction works were paused in mid-April 2022 while 
investigations were undertaken. Then suspended in June 
2022. 

 Further engagement has been undertaken with the utility 
provider regarding the high voltage cables.  

 The site is being reinstated to pre-works condition and is 
planned to be opened to the public by mid-September 2022.  

 The Contractor will demobilise following reinstatement.  

 Risk impacts continue to be assessed and solutions 
developed. 

 The project will continue to endeavour to secure additional 
funding as required. 
 

  

Page 10



2.3 Stakeholder communications: 
 
The following actions have been taken: 
 

 A letter to explain the reinstatement works and future of the 
scheme is being circulated to properties in the immediate 
area. An update will be posted on the project webpage.   

 Site posters to explain the reinstatement works and future of 
the scheme will be put on the construction site fencing at 
Alverstoke. 

 The reinstatement work has been agreed with key 
stakeholders Hampshire Highways and Brodrick Hall.  
 

2.4 
 

Funding: 
 
The construction works have stopped to ensure the mandated budget was 
not exceeded. The mandated budget includes £1,113,238 of approved 
funding from the Environment Agency. 
 
The following actions have been taken: 

 A request for additional funding has been discussed with the 
Environment Agency.  

 A funding application has been made to the Department for 
Education.  

 Further funding sources continue to be investigated.  
 

2.5 Way Forward: 
 
Over the next four – six months, the project team plan to undertake the 
following to assess the viability of the scheme returning to site: 
 

• Reassess budgets and optimise remaining funds.  
• Carry out risk reduction of the design and construction. 
• Secure further funding to close the funding gap.  
• Develop an exception plan to set out how the project moves 

forwards.  
 

3.0 Conclusion 
 

3.1 The project progressed to site in mid-January 2022 but significant project 
risks have materialised. To avoid exceeding the mandated budget and 
putting the council at excessive risk, works were stopped, and the site 
reinstated. The future delivery of the scheme is being determined to ensure 
sufficient budget is available, and a further update will be provided.  
 

 

 

Financial Services comments: The current 4 year capital programme includes 

Page 11



£327,800 for this scheme and is fully grant 
funded by the Environment Agency. Should 
any proposals change the future funding of the 
scheme a report will be brought back to 
members. 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report. 
 
 

Equality and Diversity: The completed scheme will maintain and 
enhance current access for the public. IIA not 
required since report is for noting. 

Climate Change implications: This scheme will reduce the risk of tidal 
flooding to residents, the scheme will include 
environmental enhancements.   

Crime and Disorder: There is no change in use or non-flood 
infrastructure of the area following completion 
of the works.  

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

Not applicable. 

Corporate Plan: Develop programme of coastal defences.  

Risk Assessment: Project risks and actions are discussed in the 
report. 

Background Papers: Community Board 10th February 2021 – Award 
of contract to the preferred bidder. 
 
Policy & Organisational Board 20th July 2021 - 
Support of the risk underwriting by the Council 
for costs in excess of the current approved 
funding.  
 

Appendices: None. 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Steve Fitzmaurice/Stevyn Ricketts 

 

 

Page 12



 

Board/Committee: Community & Environment Board 

Date of meeting: 14TH September 2022 

Title: Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Forton 

Author: Head of Streetscene  

Status: For Noting 

 

Purpose 

This report is to provide Members with a status update for the Forton coastal 
defence scheme. 

Recommendation 

The Board notes that: 

- A number of risks have been realised on the scheme, including a badger sett 

and the effects of inflation, which have put the project budget under significant 

pressure.  

- To mitigate financial risk, construction works have been paused and the site 

is being reinstated to pre-works condition and will be opened to the public.  

- The future delivery of the scheme is being determined, supported by 
assessments to ensure sufficient budget is available.   

- Public communications have been completed, via a letter drop and website 
updates, explaining that due to realised risks, construction work on the 
defence has stopped. 

 

1.0 Background  
 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 

The proposed scheme will reduce flood risk to 211 properties in Forton 
over the next 50 years. The preferred contractor was approved by the 
Community Board 10th February 2021. Construction of the scheme started 
in April 2022, with an estimated four-month duration.  
 
During construction a number of risks were realised, and a decision was 
made in April 2022 to pause construction works on site to ensure the 
mandated budget was not exceeded. In September 2022, the site will be 
reinstated back to pre-works condition and will be re-opened, to avoid 
putting the council at excessive risk.  
 
Upon resolving the outstanding risks and funding needs, it is intended that 
the works will resume as quickly as possible, but this outcome cannot be 
known at this stage. The optimum way forward will need to be developed in 
consultation with the Environment Agency to establish a suitable funding 
route.   

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 
2.0 Report 

 
 
2.1 

 
Scheme Design: 
 
The proposed scheme at Forton will provide a flood defence to a 1 in 100-
year event (1% Annual Exceedance Probability) up to 2060.  
 
The defence comprises a 1.1m high, and 240m long reinforced concrete 
wall set back from the quay edge. This links to higher ground in the north 
and south where there are two low level ‘raised road humps’ to provide the 
levels needed for flood protection and allow vehicles to cross the defence. 
At the southern end, ‘demountable flood boards’ will be used on the road 
hump to provide extra flood defence height during specified tidal events.   
 

 
2.2 

 
Progress Update: 
 
Construction works started in April 2022.  
 
During construction a number of risks were realised which have impacted 
the project significantly: 
 

 The location of a badger sett discovered on site and the need to 
construct a new artificial badger sett to replace this. This will 
involve planning applications and environmental licences, and 
specialist advice to ensure we comply with environmental law.  

 The civil engineering sector is facing unprecedented challenges 
from cost inflation and the supply of construction materials.  

 An immediate request was made to the Environment Agency for 
additional funds. An official decision has not yet been received 
and is now outside of the timeframe needed to maintain progress 
on site. 

 
The following actions were taken to mitigate the risks that the mandated 
budget would be exceeded: 
 

 Engagement has been undertaken with the specialist badger 
consultant regarding the location and presence of badgers on 
site.  

 Construction works were paused in mid-April 2022 and 
suspended in June 2022.  

 The site is planned to be reinstated to pre-works condition in 
September 2022. 

 The contractor will demobilise following reinstatement.  

 The badger issues continue to be assessed and solutions 
developed.  

 The project will continue to endeavour to secure additional 
funding as required.  

Page 14



 
 
2.3 

 
Stakeholder Communications: 
 
The following actions have been undertaken: 

 A letter explaining the reinstatement works and future of the 
scheme is being circulated to properties in the immediate area. 
An update will be posted on the project webpage.   

 The reinstatement work has been agreed with key stakeholders, 
including St Vincent College.    

 

 
2.4 
 

 
Funding: 
 
The construction works have stopped to ensure the mandated budget was 
not exceeded. The mandated budget includes £1,145,661 of approved 
funding from the Environment Agency and Local Levy. 
 
The following actions have been taken: 

 A request for additional funding has been discussed with the 
Environment Agency.  

 A funding application has been made to the Department for 
Education. 

 Further funding sources continue to be investigated.  
 

 
2.5 

 
Way Forward: 
 
Over the next four – six months, the project team plan to undertake the 
following to assess the viability of the scheme returning to site: 

 Reassess budgets and optimise remaining funds.  

 Carry out risk reduction of the design and construction. 

 Secure further funding to close the funding gap.  

 Develop an Exception Plan to set out how the project moves 
forwards. 

 
3.0 Conclusion 

 
3.1 The project progressed to site in April 2022 but significant project risks 

have materialised. To avoid exceeding the mandated budget and putting 
the council at excessive risk, works were stopped, and the site reinstated. 
The future delivery of the scheme is being determined to ensure sufficient 
budget is available, and a further update will be provided.  
 

 

 

 

Page 15



Financial Services comments: The current 4 year capital programme includes 
£611,300 for this scheme and is fully grant 
funded by the Environment Agency. Should 
any proposals change the future funding of the 
scheme a report will be brought back to 
members. 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report 
 

Equality and Diversity: The completed scheme will maintain and 
enhance current access for the public and 
college. IIA not required since report is for 
noting.  

Climate Change implications: This scheme will reduce the risk of tidal 
flooding to residents, and the college.   

Crime and Disorder: There is no change in use or non-flood 
infrastructure of the area following completion 
of the works.  

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

Not applicable. 

Corporate Plan: Develop programme of coastal defences. 

Risk Assessment: Project risks and actions are discussed in the 
report. 

Background Papers: Community Board 10th February 2021 – Award 
of contract to the preferred bidder. 

Appendices: None 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Steve Fitzmaurice/Stevyn Ricketts 
 

Page 16



 

 

 

Board/Committee: Community & Environment Board 

Date of meeting: 14th September 2022 

Title: Climate Change Action Plan progress update 

Author: Climate Change Officer 

Status: For noting 

 

Purpose 

This report sets out the progress that has been achieved against the Climate 
Change Action Plan that was approved at the Climate Change Board meeting of 10th 
March 2022. 

Recommendation 

That the Board notes this progress update. 

1.0 Background 

1.1 The current version of the Climate Change Action Plan was approved on 
10th March 2022. 

1.2 As set out in the work programme agreed by the Climate Change Board on 
15th July 2021, this report provides a progress update on delivery of the 
items in the Climate Change Action Plan, which will help inform revised 
versions of the Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan. 

2.0 Report 

2.1 Appendix 1 sets out progress on the eight actions that were due for 
completion by 31st August 2022.  The current status of these is as follows. 

2.2.0 Delivered measures 

2.2.1 Advice on preparing for and managing heat waves has now been added to 
the Council website. 

2.2.2 Measures to promote public transport services and opportunities to request 
tree planting have been completed.  These are ongoing actions and target 
dates for the next measures to be taken are provided in Appendix 1. 

2.3.0 Delayed actions 

2.3.1 A feasibility study for solar panels on Gosport Leisure Centre is effectively 
completed, but this action will not be marked as complete until a decision 
on whether to proceed with the project has been taken. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



 

 

2.3.2 Progress has been made on the remaining four actions, but their 
completion has been delayed for various reasons such as resourcing 
constraints.  Updates and revised target dates for these actions are 
provided in Appendix 1. 

3.0 Conclusion 

3.1 Progress against the Climate Change Action Plan is provided, which the 
Board is asked to note. 

 

Financial Services comments: No cost implications 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report. 

Equality and Diversity: No equality and diversity implications; IIA not 
required since report is for noting. 

Climate Change implications: Delivery of the items on the Climate Change 
Action Plan will contribute to the targets set out 
in the Climate Change Strategy; IIA is not 
required since report is for noting. 

Crime and Disorder: N/A 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

Actions required are already integrated into 
Service Plans. 

Corporate Plan: Monitoring progress on delivering the Climate 
Change Action Plan will help deliver the strategic 
priorities of responding to the challenges of 
climate change and delivering quality services. 

Risk Assessment: Low risk: no immediate actions are proposed. 

Background Papers: Climate Change Action Plan: 
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2995/Climate-
Change-Action-
Plan/pdf/Climate_Change_Action_Plan_Public_2
0220310.pdf 

Appendices:  

Appendix 1 Climate Change Action Plan – progress on 
actions due by 31st August 2022 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Tim Pratt, 023 9254 5573 
 

Page 18

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2995/Climate-Change-Action-Plan/pdf/Climate_Change_Action_Plan_Public_20220310.pdf
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2995/Climate-Change-Action-Plan/pdf/Climate_Change_Action_Plan_Public_20220310.pdf
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2995/Climate-Change-Action-Plan/pdf/Climate_Change_Action_Plan_Public_20220310.pdf
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2995/Climate-Change-Action-Plan/pdf/Climate_Change_Action_Plan_Public_20220310.pdf


Climate Change Action Plan – progress on actions due by 31st August 2022 

ID Action 
Responsible 
officer 

Original target 
date 

Status Notes 

11.5 
Carry out feasibility study for solar 
panels on Gosport Leisure Centre. 

Head of 
Streetscene 

28/2/22 
Delayed to 
31/12/22 

A feasibility study has been produced, but this action will not be 
considered to be completed until a decision as to whether to proceed has 
been taken and timescales agreed.  Capital expenditure is currently being 
assessed in light of Council's strategic priorities. 

10.6 
Create wildflower meadows and 
rewilded areas. 

Head of 
Streetscene 

Ongoing. 
Next areas 
created by 
31/5/22 

Delayed to 
31/10/22 

Due to the dry weather in spring, sowing will now take place in autumn as 
this gives a better chance of getting wildflower meadows established. 

5.5 
Provide and promote bespoke online 
energy related emissions reductions 
advice for all domestic properties. 

Head of Housing 30/6/22 
Delayed to 
31/10/22 

Provision of data by supplier has been delayed but we have been advised 
that this will be available shortly.  Implementation of the tool by the 
supplier will require an additional few weeks after this; discussion with 
Portsmouth City Council needed as they have raised concerns about their 
capacity to deal with enquiries generated by the tool. 

6.7 
Promote existing public transport 
services including the Bus Rapid 
Transit scheme. 

Traffic and 
Transportation 
Manager 

Ongoing. 
Next promotion 
by 30/6/22 

First promotion 
complete.  Next 
promotion by 
31/12/22 

 

9.3 
Add advice on preparing for and 
managing heat waves to Council 
website. 

Head of 
Emergency 
Planning 

30/6/22 Complete  

9.6 
Promote opportunities to request 
highway tree planting. 

Climate Change 
Officer 

Ongoing. 
Next promotion 
by 30/6/22 

Promotion for 
2022 complete.  
Next promotion 
by 31/5/23 

Promotion for 2022 was via the GBC website.  An earlier target date in 
2023 will allow more extensive promotion consistent with Hampshire 
County Council timelines. 

11.1 
Establish staff-based working group to 
develop and promote sustainable 
working practices. 

Climate Change 
Officer 

30/6/22 
Delayed to 
30/9/22 

Aims, remit and approach have been agreed, and an initial meeting is 
expected after the summer period. 

P
age 19



ID Action 
Responsible 
officer 

Original target 
date 

Status Notes 

2.1 
Optimise collection routes to minimise 
distance travelled. 

Head of 
Streetscene 

31/8/22 Delayed 
New routes have been designed but implementation has been delayed 
due to software, operational and resourcing issues.  We are currently 
waiting on the contractor to provide a revised target date. 

 

P
age 20



 

Board/Committee: Community and Environment Board 

Date of meeting: 14th September 2022 

Title: Waste and Recycling Policy  

Author: Head of Streetscene 

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for an updated Waste and Recycling 
Collection Policy. 

Recommendation 

The Board approves the Waste and Recycling Policy as set out in Appendix A.  

 

1.0 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Background 
 
Gosport Borough Council’s Waste and Recycling Collection Policy aims to 
ensure that refuse and recycling services operate effectively and efficiently 
in order to maximise recycling and reduce the amount of waste sent for 
treatment and disposal.  
 
The Council is classed as a Waste Collection Authority and as such under 
a duty to arrange the collection of household waste from properties in its 
area.1 Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (EPA 1990) 
empowers a waste collection authority to require residents to place 
household waste out for collection in designated containers and separated 
into specified waste streams. 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

Report 
 
In October 2013 Gosport Borough Councils Waste and Recycling Policy 
was approved by the Community Board. The policy was updated in 
February 2021 with a requirement that residents and developers were 
charged for new or replacement wheeled bins in any event unless the 
council or its contractor is proved to have caused the damage or loss. The 
previous policy allowed for refuse and recycling bins to be provided free of 
charge at a considerable cost to the council.     
 
The proposal is that residents and developers are still charged for wheeled 
bins unless (i) the council or its contractor is proved to have caused the 
damage or loss, (ii) a wheeled bin has been stolen and a crime number 
obtained, or (iii) a request to provide a replacement bin free of charge on 
hardship or other grounds has been received by a ward councillor in which 
case a free bin may be provided with the approval of the Board 

                                                           
1
  The Environmental Protection Act 1990, Section 45  

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



Chairperson.  
 

3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
A charge will still be applicable for the supply of wheeled bins in most 
cases. The proposed change in the policy detailed in para 2.2 above will 
result in a negligible risk or a reduction in income for wheeled bins as it is 
anticipated that very few bins will be issued free of charge. 
 

4.0 
 
4.1 

Conclusion 
 
Whilst residents will still be asked to pay for new or replacement wheeled 
bins, some residents require the charge be waived and bins supplied free 
of charge. 

 
 

Financial Services comments: Contained within section 3 of the report. 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report. 
 

Equality and Diversity: All households within the borough will be 
subject to the Policy. 

Climate Change: N/A 

Crime and Disorder: N/A  

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: The Council’s aim through delivery of this policy 
is to improve the quality of service and 
accessibility to wheeled bin provision for 
Gosport residents. 

Risk Assessment: As set out in paragraph 3 of the report  

Background Papers: None  

Appendices/Enclosures:  

Appendix ‘A’ Waste and Recycling Policy 

Appendix ‘B’ Equalities Impact Assessment 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Alan Wheeler, Environmental Services 
Manager (5623) 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

 
 

Contents: 
 
Introduction 
Receptacles for Household Waste 
Household Waste Collections 
Storage of Receptacles for Household Waste 
Types of Waste 
Green Garden Waste 
Clinical Waste 
Collections from Premises Occupied by Charities 
Special Household Waste Collections 
Chargeable Bulky Household Waste Collections 
Trade and Commercial Waste 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ID SENV01 

Last Review Date 2021 

Next Review Date 2025 

 
Approval 
 

 

Owner Streetscene 

Author A. Wheeler 

Advice & 
Guidance 

Contact Streetscene 

Location 
 
GBC Website 

Related 
Documents 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

Scope 
 
This policy applies to all residents.  
 

WASTE AND RECYCLING 
COLLECTION POLICY  

Page 23



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

 

 

WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION POLICY 

 
Gosport Borough Council’s Waste and Recycling Collection Policy aims to ensure 
that refuse and recycling services operate effectively and efficiently in order to 
maximise recycling and reduce the amount of waste sent for treatment and disposal.  
The Council is classed as a Waste Collection Authority and as such under a duty to 
arrange the collection of household waste from properties in its area.1 Section 46 of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (EPA 1990) empowers a waste collection 
authority to require residents to place household waste out for collection in 
designated containers and separated into specified waste streams. In so doing it can 
stipulate: 
 

 The size and type of collection receptacle(s) 

 Where the receptacle(s) must be placed for the purpose of collecting and 
emptying 

 The materials or items which may or may not be placed within the 
receptacle(s) 

 
 
A failure to meet these requirements can make a householder liable on summary 
conviction to a fine of up to level 3 on the standard scale, which is currently set at 
£1,000. The liability to conviction for an offence may also be discharged through a 
fixed penalty process. 
 

The Council is also under a duty to provide a kerbside or near door entry system for 
the separate collection of recyclable materials.2 

Not all waste from residential properties is classified as household waste. The 
Council may charge for the collection of certain types of waste from households.3 

The Council’s requirements and arrangements for discharging their duties are set out 
in this Waste and Recycling Collection Policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
1
  The Environmental Protection Act 1990, Section 45  

2
  The Household Waste Recycling Act 2003 

3
  The Controlled Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2012 

Page 24



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

 

1. RECEPTACLES FOR HOUSEHOLD WASTE 

1.1 The Council requires that all household waste is placed in receptacles provided 
by them which will be either wheeled bins (individual or communal) or sacks 
(black or clear). 

Wheeled Bins 

1.2 The Council will provide each property, where this is appropriate, with one 
wheeled bin for non- recyclable household waste (black body and black lid) and 
one wheeled bin for dry recyclable household waste (black body and green lid). 
The Council will determine the size of wheeled bins provided and generally 
these will be of 240 litre capacity. A charge per wheeled bin and communal bin 
is payable before the bin is delivered. Details of the charge payable may be 
found in the Council’s Fees and Charges Book. 

 
  
1.3    Whilst a charge is made for wheeled bins there will be circumstances, such as 

personal hardship where residents require help with the supply of replacement 
or new wheeled bins. Appeals for assistance will be considered by Streetscene 
when a request is made. It is acknowledged that residents will often speak to 
their Councillor regarding services. Streetscene will waive any fee when a 
Councillor request is made for a bin to be provided free of charge, following 
approval of the Community Board Chairman or Leader of the Council. 

 
 
1.4 Residents are permitted one refuse bin per property unless qualifying for extra 

capacity as a larger household or have exceptional circumstances. Additional 
bins will be marked with a branded sticker to identify them as being permitted 
by the Council. 

 
 
1.5 The Council may provide properties with additional waste and wheeled bins 

upon request where there is a full time resident who requires additional 
capacity for healthcare waste with additional wheeled bins.The Council will 
require written notification from a Healthcare Professional. Additional bins will 
be marked with a branded sticker to identify them as being permitted by the 
Council. 

 
1.6 Additional refuse and recycling wheeled bin capacity are subject to the Council 

being satisfied that service provision is warranted following approval for the 
request by the Council. A charge is applicable for additional bins. 

 
 

1.7 Multi dwelling premises such as flats and housing complexes will be provided 
with wheeled bins in numbers that the Council determines will make available 
sufficient storage capacity for household waste and recycling streams, based 
on the volume calculated at 240 litres per dwelling. These may be individual 
wheeled bins or communal bins. 

 

Page 25



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

1.8  All non- recyclable household waste and dry recyclable household waste must 
be placed in the wheeled bin provided by the Council for that type of household 
waste. Any household waste not placed in a wheeled bin provided by the 
Council will not be collected by the Councils waste collection Contractor (‘the 
Contractor’) and may be treated as Fly-Tipping.  
Any wheeled bin that cannot be safely placed on the lifting mechanism of the 
collection vehicle due to its weight will not be emptied.  

 
1.9 The wheeled bins provided by the Council will be delivered to the property by 

the Contractor and must remain at that property. The wheeled bins will have a 
sticker on them identifying the property number it is supplied for. The wheeled 
bins provided by the Council must remain at the property at all times and 
remain the property of the Council. 

 
1.10 The Council is not responsible for the loss, theft, removal from property, 

damage or destruction of a wheeled bin or communal bin unless the Council or 
the Contractor is proved to have accidently, wilfully or negligently caused the 
loss, removal, damage or destruction. In these circumstances the replacement 
wheeled bins or communal bin will be provided free of charge. 

Sacks 

1.11  Where the Council determines that a property does not have storage space 
available within its boundary to house wheeled bins the Council will provide the 
property with plastic sacks with the Council’s name on them. Non-recyclable 
household waste must be placed in the black sacks provided by the Council 
and dry recyclable household waste placed in the clear sacks provided by the 
Council. 

1.12  The Council will only collect a maximum of 2 sacks each week and these sacks 
must be those provided by the Council. Each property will receive 52 black 
sacks and 52 clear sacks each year. If more than 2 sacks of household waste 
are placed for collection or any of the household waste is not placed in a sack 
provided by the Council they will not be collected. Any sack which weighs more 
than 13 kg will not be collected. A sticker or tag will be placed on any sack 
which is overweight.  

1.13 Replacement sacks can be purchased from the Town Hall in rolls of 10 sacks 
as defined in the Council’s Fees and Charges Book.  

 

2. HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTIONS 

Frequency 

2.1  Household waste from all properties excluding some flatted developments is 
collected each week with non- recyclable household waste collected one week 
and dry recyclable household waste collected the following week. This is known 
as an alternate weekly collection. Each year there will be 26 collections for non 
-recyclable and 26 collections for dry recyclable household waste. 

2.2  In some flatted developments there is insufficient space to accommodate the 
necessary number of wheeled bins for dry recyclable household waste so a 

Page 26



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

different collection frequency is provided by the Council which generally 
involves replacing one of the collections for non-recyclable household waste 
with a collection of dry recyclable household waste.  

Collection Locations 

2.3  Wheeled bins or plastic sacks provided by the Council will only be collected if 
they are placed on the curtilage of the property at the point nearest to the 
carriageway or at a collection point determined by Council, where this is the 
nearest point to the carriageway, which will be notified to occupiers. 

 

 

Timing  

2.4  Collections of household waste may be made at any time between the hours of 
7am – 5pm Monday to Friday and collections for a property are made on the 
same day each week save where special arrangements are necessary for Bank 
Holidays. Where this is necessary occupiers will be advised in advance and 
these special arrangements may involve a collection on a Saturday between 
the hours of 7am – 5pm. 

2.5   Wheeled bins or sacks provide by the Council must not be placed out for 
collection at the collection location prior to the evening before the scheduled 
collection day and must be placed at the collection location no later than 7am 
on the scheduled collection day. Household waste found to be stored on the 
public highway will be investigated by the Council as fly tipping 

Missed Collections 

2.6  The Council defines a missed collection as a wheeled bin or sack which 
remains full after the collection vehicle has passed along the road emptying 
neighbouring properties wheeled bins or collecting sacks and where the 
Contractor has not identified that there is a specific reason such as the 
receptacle being too heavy for it not being collected. Half emptied wheeled bins 
are also treated as missed collections.  This may occur when household waste 
has been compacted into the wheeled bin and in these circumstances the 
occupier should loosen the household waste and then contact the Council. 

2.7  The Contractor will return and collect the missed wheeled bin or sack within 3 
working days of notification. 

Assistance with Collections 

2.8  If Occupiers are unable to manoeuvre a wheeled bin then the Council may be 
able to arrange for assistance to be provided.  

2.9  An application for assistance must be made in writing and include the 
following;- 

a. The reasons why the Occupier needs assistance and where this is due to 
mobility or medical issues this should be set out in a letter from the Occupiers 
Doctor;  

Page 27



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

b. Confirmation that there is no one else living at the property who is able to 
manoeuvre the wheeled bin; 

c. An acknowledgment that the Council and Contractor are not liable for any 
damage or loss caused as a result of a collection vehicle or Contractor coming 
onto the property whilst providing the assistance; 

d. An indemnity that in the event that the Council will provide assistance the 
Occupier agrees to indemnify the Council for any damage or loss caused as a 
result of a collection vehicle a Council officer or the Contractor coming onto the 
property whilst providing the assistance. 

2.10  The Head of StreetScene will consider any application for assistance on the 
basis of the information provided in the application and determine what 
assistance if any, is reasonable and practical to provide. 

2.11  Where assistance is provided the Occupier will be notified of the arrangements 
for collection. 

 

3. STORAGE OF RECEPTACLES FOR HOUSEHOLD WASTE 

Storage of Household Waste Receptacles between collections 

3.1  Household waste whether placed in a receptacle provided by the Council or 
otherwise must be stored on private property between collection days.  Storage 
is NOT permitted on the public highway. If an occupier continues to store 
household waste receptacles on the public highway a  notice pursuant to 
section 46 of the Environmental Act 1990 notice may be issued (section 46 
notice) 

 

   Storage Areas 

3.2  All new buildings or buildings being altered or adapted must provide sufficient 
storage space for the number of household waste receptacles necessary for 
the number of dwellings being created. The Council will provide developers with 
details of their requirements. 

3.3  Occupiers of existing buildings are responsible for providing adequate storage 
areas for household waste receptacles and should be prepared to provide 
additional storage facilities if the need arises. 

Access to Storage Areas for Wheeled Bins 

3.4  The Contractor must be provided with clear access from the collection vehicle 
to where they collect the wheeled bins. Level access is required including 
dropped kerbs. In communal bin storage areas a clear access and egress route 
must be provided to enable the Contractor to manoeuvre the bins from the 
storage area to the collection vehicle. Where waste or other materials are 
placed in the storage area or on top of the wheeled bins so that a clear access 
and egress route is not available the wheeled bins will not be emptied and the 
Council will notify the person managing the storage area. 

 

Page 28



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

4. TYPES OF WASTE 

Waste which will not be collected as part of the alternate weekly 
collections  

4.1  The following must not be placed in the receptacles provided by the Council 
and will not be collected as part of the Alternate weekly collections of 
Household Waste:- 

 Asbestos* 

 Commercial or industrial waste 

 Brick rubble, soil and construction materials* 

 Domestic appliances and electrical/electronic equipment# 

 Fixtures and fittings, i.e. carpets, shelving units, cupboards etc.# 

 Green  Garden Waste# and soil 

 Hot ashes 

 Medication 

 Clinical waste deemed as infectious# 

 Oil* and flammable liquids 

 Paints and chemicals* 

 Scrap metals* 
 

# these materials can be collected as part of other waste collection services 
offered by Gosport Borough Council.  Further information can be obtained by 
contacting the Council on 08000 198598 or visiting www.gosport.gov.uk. If the 
occupier continues to place the above waste in the household waste bin a 
section 46 notice in writing may be issued 

 
*These items may be disposed of at the Household Waste Recycling Centre, 
for details of acceptable items please refer to http://www3.hants.gov.uk/waste-
and-recycling.htm or telephone Hampshire County Council on 0845 603 5634. 

 
4.2  Unmarked items must be disposed of by other licensed waste contractors.   
 

Dry Recyclable Household Waste 
 
4.3  All of the following items may be placed in the dry recyclable household waste 

wheeled bin or clear sack provided by the Council and collected from properties 
as part of the alternate weekly collection:- 

 

 Paper 

 Magazines 

 Envelopes (with or without windows)  

 Cereal boxes 

 Newspapers  

 Catalogues 

 Greeting cards 

 Cardboard 

 Junk mail 

 All food/drink cans 

 All plastic bottles. 

Page 29

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/waste-and-recycling.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/waste-and-recycling.htm


 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

 Aerosol cans 
 
4.4  Any dry recyclable household waste wheeled bin (green lidded) or clear sack 

provided by the Council will not be emptied if it is found to contain waste which 
is not included in the list in 4.3 above. A red tag will be placed on the 
receptacle. The Occupier will need to ensure that the waste is removed before 
the receptacle is placed for collection on the next scheduled collection day. If 
the occupier continues to place non-recycling waste in the recyclable 
household waste bin a section 46 notice in writing may be issued. 

 

 

5. Green Garden Waste 

The Council’s contractor, arrange for the collection of green/garden waste. For 
more information on this service visit: https://gosportgardenwaste.co.uk/  

6.  Clinical Waste 

6.1  The Council collect clinical waste from properties where an Occupier has 
notified their Doctor and the Surgery has submitted a clinical waste referral 
form to the Council. Clinical waste includes infectious and non- infectious 
material and sharps. The referral from the Surgery will set out what type of 
clinical waste is to be collected and where the clinical waste is infectious which 
includes sharps then a clinical waste collection will be provided by the Council. 

6.2  Clinical waste collections are provided free of charge and the Council will notify 
the person requesting the clinical waste collection of the day and frequency of 
collections. Clinical waste collections are from the front of properties between 
the hours of 7am – 5pm. 

7  Collections from Premises occupied by Charities 

7.1  The Council will collect household waste from premises occupied by charities 
where the charity is not carrying out any activities of a business or commercial 
nature. 

7.2  Places of Worship will be provided with 1 x 240 litre wheeled bin for non-
recyclable household waste and 1 x 240 litre wheeled bin for dry recyclable 
household waste free of charge which will be collected as part of the alternate 
weekly collection. 

8  Special Household Waste Collections 

8.1  The Council will collect 5 or more bulky items or larger quantities of household 
waste or items which are not on the bulky household waste list. A charge is 
payable and the Council will provide a free estimate of the charge which is 
payable before the collection is made.  

9  Chargeable Bulky Household Waste Collections 

9.1  Regulations set out what types of household waste are defined as chargeable 
bulky household items. The Council do collect such items where payment of the 

Page 30

https://gosportgardenwaste.co.uk/


 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

charges set out in the Council’s Fees and Charges Book is made before the 
collection. 

9.2  Items to be collected must be placed at the front of the property unless an 
alternative collection is agreed by the Council, before the collection day. The 
items must not be placed on the highway. The items will be collected between 
7am – 5pm on the day notified for the collection. If assistance is needed to 
remove an item from within the property this must be agreed by the Council at 
the time the request is made prior to the day of collection. 

 

 

10  Trade and Commercial Waste 

10.1  The Council do not provide a collection service for trade or commercial waste. 

10.2  The Council will investigate and take enforcement action where trade or 
commercial waste is found in household waste. 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

Waste & Recycling Collection Policy  X A. Wheeler X5563  
01/09/2022 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change ? 

 
Update that reflects proposed change to Policy whereby wheeled bins can be provided free of charge on occasion when 
Officers and Members are made aware of personal hardship or other circumstances whereby a fee can be waived. 
 

P
age 33



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

2 
 

 
 
 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                   yes          X no 

If yes, summarise the methods used  and results of the consultation:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the 
following three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for 
each of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 
proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

P
age 34



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

3 
 

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age   

x 

All households within the borough of council are 
provided with a waste collection service including 
wheeled bins or sacks and subject to the implications of 
the Policy. 

Disability   
Gender reassignment   
Marriage and Civil Partnership   
Pregnancy    
Race (ethnicity,  nationality, colour)   
Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)   
Sex   
Sexual Orientation   

The Armed Forces Bill  places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Veterans,  ex-service and members of their 
families living in residential accommodation 
in the Borough 

  x As above 

     
     

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

Residents experiencing significant 
financial hardship.  

 x  
Some Residents experiencing significant financial hardship 
may be unable to afford the replacement bin charge.  

     

     

P
age 35

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk
file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

4 
 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

Those residents unable to place out 
waste at their designated collection 
point due to disabilities or age will 
receive an assisted lift.  

StreetScene on receipt of notification 
from Healthcare Professional 

Resident will receive a response within 
10 days of request 

Those residents unable to afford 
wheeled bins will receive appropriate 
assistance. 

Residents who can evidence financial 
hardship can apply for consideration of a 
waiver of the bin replacement charge to 
Streetscene directly or to their local 
Councillor for consideration  

Resident will receive a response within 
10 days of request 

    

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

    

P
age 36

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

5 
 

Emissions from transport 
Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

   
The Policy update will have no effect on 
emissions 

Emissions from agriculture 
and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food consumption 

    

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods and 
materials used by GBC or others 

    

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would be 
affected by flooding and high winds 

    

Vulnerability to heat waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
heat 

    

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
drought 

    

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production     

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Levels of consumption by GBC, households 
and businesses, and extent to which 
materials used are reusable 

    

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and provision 
of recycling services 

    

P
age 37



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

6 
 

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

    

Emissions of key pollutants 
from industrial processes 

Emissions from chemical processes     

Emissions of key pollutants 
from other sources 

Domestic and other fires     

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed or 
dispersed 

    

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 
Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance     

Biodiversity and quality of 
habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

    

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

    

P
age 38



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

7 
 

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity X  All households receive a waste and recycling collection 
service and provision of wheeled bins or sacks  

B. Climate Change & Environment    

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity     

B. Climate Change & Environment     

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity    

B. Climate Change &Environment     

P
age 39



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

8 
 

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

     This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be 

included with Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this 

proposed change. 

Signed by Head of Service: 

Date: 

 

P
age 40



 

Board/Committee: Community and Environment Board 

Date of meeting: 14th September 2022 

Title: Litter Bin Policy  

Author: Head of Streetscene 

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the attached Litter Bin Policy. 

Recommendation 

The Board approves the Litter Bin Policy as set out in Appendix A.  

 

1.0 
 
1.1 
 
 
 

Background 
 
The attached policy sets out the principles that will be followed in the 
selecting and siting of new litter bins, reviewing of existing litter bin sites, 
and ensuring that the correct bin types are used in the most appropriate 
locations. 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 

Report 
 
The Council does not have a legal duty to provide litter and dog waste bins 
but it does have a duty to ensure Council owned land and public highways 
are clear of litter and refuse as far as is practicable. Since changes to the 
classification of wastes, dog waste can be mixed with other litter in the 
same litter bins and disposed of in the same way. 
 
The Council provides and maintains bins in strategic locations across the 
borough as a means of controlling litter and dog waste problems. There 
are approximately 900 bins in varying condition across the borough. Whilst 
the Council is committed to providing sufficient bins to help discharge its 
responsibilities under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, bins are 
usually located in areas where it can be demonstrated that there is a 
genuine need. 
 
The attached Litter Bin Policy (Appendix A) aims to improve the 
management of litter bins which will help support consistent decision 
making, and ensure that litter bins are sited where they are most effective. 
 

3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Failure to provide sufficient bins in the correct locations across the borough 
will impact on the cleanliness of areas. 
 
Should the number of bins provided across the borough increase above 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



3.2 
 
 
 
 

the current figure of 900 then this could place a strain on current resource 
levels within the contract to adequately empty the bins.   
 

4.0 
 
4.1 

Conclusion 
 
The attached policy will ensure that litter bin provision is provided in a 
sustainable approach across the borough.  
 

 

Financial Services comments: No comments 
 

Legal Services comments: Contained within report 
 

Equality and Diversity: Comments contained within IIA 

Climate Change: Comments contained within IIA 

Crime and Disorder: N/A 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

To be delivered by Streetscene Services. 

Corporate Plan: Raise aspirations through generating a sense 
of pride within the borough through delivering 
effective services. 

Risk Assessment: As set out in paragraph 3 of the report  

Background Papers: None  

Appendices/Enclosures:  

Appendix ‘A’ Litter Bin Policy 

Appendix ‘B’ Equalities Impact Assessment  

Report Author/Lead Officer: Stevyn Ricketts, Head of Streetscene (5282) 

 

 

Page 42



 

 

 
 

Contents: 
 
Introduction 
Policy Content 
Usage and Efficiency 
Prioritisation Criteria 
Other Siting Criteria 
Public Events 
Parks and Open Spaces 
Specific waste Streams 
Appendix 1 
 
 

 
 
 

ID SENV02 

Last Review Date 01.09.2022 

Next Review Date 01.09.2025 

 
Approval 
 

 

Owner Streetscene 

Author S Ricketts 

Advice & 
Guidance 

Contact Streetscene 

Location 
 
GBC Website 

Related 
Documents 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

Scope 
 
This policy applies borough wide  
 

LITTER BIN POLICY 
 

Page 43



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

 

 

LITTER BIN POLICY 

 
Introduction: 
 
The Council has no legal duty to provide litter and dog waste bins but it does have a 
duty to keep Council owned land and public highways clear of litter and refuse as far 
as is practicable. Since changes to the classification of wastes, dog waste can be put 
into litter bins, and disposed of in the same way. 
 
Bins are traditionally provided, maintained and emptied as a means of controlling 
litter or dog waste problems. There are approximately 900 bins in varying condition 
across the Borough. Whilst the Council is committed to providing sufficient bins to 
help discharge its responsibilities under the Environmental Act 1990, bins will only be 
located in areas where it can be demonstrated that there is a genuine need for one.     
 
This policy sets out the principles which will be followed in selecting and siting litter 
bins in the future, reviewing existing litter bin sites, and ensuring that the correct bin 
types are used in the most appropriate locations.  
 
Appendix 1 outlines the factors which need to be taken into consideration when 
determining the siting of litter bins. 
 
Policy Content: 
 
This policy is designed to outline the principles which will be followed in:  
 

 Selecting and reviewing where litter bins are located across the borough.  

 Inform decision making for future litter bin sites, and to; 

 Assist with decision making around existing litter bin sites with the ultimate 
objective of locating the correct size and type of right bins in the right place, 
reflecting demand.  
 
The Council’s capacity to provide litter bins is finite. It is likely that the demand for 
litter bins will, at certain times or locations, exceed capacity. 
 
A range of bin types may be deployed across the borough taking into account the 
following: 
 

 Available litter bin stocks 

 Size of litter bin versus usage and demand 

 Type of location.  
 
It is intended that future litter bin sites will be selected by using guiding principles. 
These will include (but are not restricted to):  

 Member requests 

Page 44



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

 Operational efficiency 

 Usage patterns 

 Health and safety considerations associated with the servicing of the litter bins 
 
The type, size and location of litter bins are all linked to how litter bins are used by 
the public, and in particular how frequently they require to be emptied, and how 
much litter is collected. These are the key determinants which need to be matched to 
service delivery and flexibility in terms of servicing frequency and the ability to route 
services effectively and efficiently. 
 
Usage and efficiency: 
 
Changes to the ways in which litter bins are managed will be governed by two 
factors. How they are used by the public and how efficiently they can be serviced.  
 
The routing of collection rounds, coupled with resident and member feedback will 
help to improve the efficiency and responsiveness of Waste and Cleansing services, 
but will also be used to better target the siting of the bins to maximise their efficiency.  
 
Prioritisation Criteria: 
 
It is not possible to define specific sites which will and will not receive litter bins. The 
following areas will normally be viewed as high priority to receive litter bins:  
 

 Main arterial routes and other high footfall and through route areas 

 Main areas of commerce and retail 

 Key routes in relation to secondary schools 

 Near fast food and takeaway retailers 

 Public transport hubs (eg. Bus stops and similar areas) where large numbers of 
people stand for periods of time, particularly in central areas 

 Entrances to parks and significant public open spaces 
 
The following areas will not normally be viewed as high priority for litter bin 
placements, or may in some cases be ruled out for litter bin placement:  
 

 Exclusively residential areas, except where these become high priority due to one 
of the reasons above 

 Locations where the litter bin would be sited in close proximity to a household 
waste bin (i.e. communal bins) 

 Locations where the litter bin is being abused, including; inappropriate disposal of 
household or commercial waste which has not been resolved by engagement or 
enforcement; sites which are subject to arson or vandalism.  
 
Other Siting Criteria: 
 
Care must be taken to ensure that litter bins do not impede pedestrian flows and 
take into account the particular needs of people who use wheelchairs and prams. A 
minimum footpath width of 1.5m must be maintained.  
 

Page 45



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

Avoid installing bins adjacent walls, or other street furniture where bins can be used 
to climb. If a bin is to be located near domestic dwellings then consideration should 
be given to contacting residents before instillation to advise them. 
 
Public Events:  
 
The provision of temporary litter bins may be considered at specific locations to 
reflect increased pedestrian flows and litter generation at certain times, e.g. during 
public events.  
 
Other criteria with regard to safe siting, or whether or not to provide a separate 
recycling service should be taken into account when siting these bins. Litter bins 
must not be provided to collect commercial waste and it must be made clear that 
events organisers must put in place separate arrangements. 
 
Parks and Open Spaces: 
 
The siting of bins in public parks and open spaces presents some particular 
challenges in terms of efficiency, capacity and safety. It is usually viewed as 
beneficial to encourage park users to take their waste to strategic locations, usually 
at entrances and exits, so that the litter bin can be serviced safely without having to 
drive into or around the open space.  
 
Therefore, as facilities are upgraded the following principles will be adopted:  
 

 Litter bin locations will be moved from throughout the park or public space, to key 
locations 

 The maximum capacity must be provided  

 The facilities should be designed to take account of the usage of the sites, with 
dedicated facilities being provided as appropriate for barbecue waste, specific 
appropriate recycling streams, etc. 
 
Specific Waste Streams:  
 
Consideration will be given to the siting of dedicated litter bins or containers for the 
safe disposal of hot waste, such as Barbeques at locations where there is a history 
of barbecue usage during good weather.  
 
The Council’s policy with regards to dog waste is to maximise efficiency by collecting 
bagged dog waste alongside general waste. No dedicated dog waste bins will be 
provided.  
 
Requests for new bins from ward councillors 
 
Priority will be given to requests from ward councillors for new or replacement bins at 
locations within their own wards subject to (i) a suitable bin being available and (ii) 
approval of the request being granted by the Chair of the Community & Environment 
Board. 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Appendix 1: Factors for consideration 

 Cost  

 Bin density (how far do people have to walk?)  

 Bin size  

 Bin type 

 Land ownership- owned or adopted land only  

 Location type (e.g. high priority areas as outlined in the policy) 

 Usage/ demand 

 Safety (public and staff) 

 Bins creating litter (whether due to capacity, misuse or location).  

 Vandalism and arson  

 Terrorism  

 Evaluation  

 Design for recycling  

 Proximity to household waste (communal) bins which can perform same function. 

 Parks, open spaces, civic areas, etc 

Where the justification for a new bin, based on the criteria listed above, is unclear it 
might be possible for a bin to be installed on a trial basis for up to one year during 
which its use could be monitored via the Enforcement Officers and the cleansing 
contractor.  

 

 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

Litter Bin Policy X  S Ricketts X5282 02.09.22 
 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change? 

 
Introduction of a new Litter Bin Policy. 
 
 

P
age 49



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

2 
 

 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                  yes          no 

If yes, summarise the methods used  and results of the consultation:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the 
following three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for 
each of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 
proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age   X Available to all residents and visitors to the borough.  

P
age 50

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

3 
 

Disability   X 

Gender reassignment   X 

Marriage and Civil Partnership   X 

Pregnancy    X 

Race (ethnicity,  nationality, colour)   X 

Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)   X 

Sex   X 

Sexual Orientation   X 

The Armed Forces Bill  places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

All   X 
The services listed above will apply to the armed forces who will 
receive the same communication. 

     

     

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

     

     

     

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

Householder feedback and any complaints 
about the service or changes to the service 
will be captured and reviewed for scope for 
improvements and assessed to ensure no 
unfair treatment or disadvantage is taking 
place 

Streetscene - Environmental Enforcement 
Manager 

Customer complaints are investigated as 
service enquiries initially and if not able to be 
resolved are subject to the Council’s 
Complaints Procedure. 

P
age 51

file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

4 
 

 

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

  X 

The litter collected from the bins will be disposed 
of through the Portsmouth Energy Recovery 
Facility (ERF) where the energy from waste will 
supply the National Grid.  The policy is not 
expected to result in any significant change in 
energy generated. 

Emissions from transport 
 Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

  X 

Transportation of litter to the collection and 
disposal point will be required. The policy is not 
expected to result in any significant changes to 
distances travelled or resulting emissions. 

Emissions from 
agriculture and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food 
consumption 

   N/A 

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods 
and materials used by GBC or others 

   N/A 

P
age 52

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

5 
 

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would 
be affected by flooding and high winds 

  X  

Vulnerability to heat 
waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to 
which habitats and species would be 
affected by heat 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to 
which habitats and species would be 
affected by drought 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production    N/A 

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Increase in bin provision   x 
Additional resources required to adequately 
service the bin stock.  

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and 
provision of recycling services 

  X 

The policy does not provide for the siting of 
dedicated bins for recyclable materials.  
Therefore all little collected will be disposed of 
through the Portsmouth Energy Recovery 
Facility (ERF), as at present. 

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key 
pollutants from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

  X 

Transportation of litter to the collection and 
disposal point will be required.  The policy is not 
expected to result in any significant changes to 
distances travelled or resulting emissions. 

Emissions of key 
pollutants from industrial 
processes 

Emissions from chemical processes    N/A 

P
age 53



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

6 
 

Emissions of key 
pollutants from other 
sources 

Domestic and other fires    N/A 

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed 
or dispersed 

   N/A 

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance    N/A 

Biodiversity and quality 
of habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

   N/A 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

    

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity    

B. Climate Change & Environment    

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity   X  

B. Climate Change & Environment   X  

P
age 54



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

7 
 

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity  x  

B. Climate Change &Environment  x   

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

     This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be included with 
Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this proposed 
change. 

Signed by Head of Service: 

Date: 

 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 29 June 2022
	Minutes

	6 Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Alverstoke
	7 Construction of Flood Defence Structures at Forton
	8 Climate Change Action Plan progress Update
	Climate Change Action Plan progress update 20220914

	9 Waste & Recycling Policy
	Waste and Recycling Policy Document 01.09.22
	W&R policy IIA 05-09-22

	10 Litter  Bin Policy
	Litter Bin Provision Policy Document 01.09.22
	Litter Bin Policy IIA 02.09.22


